
Hickory Regional Planning Commission Agenda  
September 27, 2023 

   
       
 
 
 
The Hickory Regional Planning Commission will hold its regular meeting on Wednesday, 
September 27, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. in the City Hall Map Conference Room.  The following will 
be the agenda for the Regular Meeting: 
 

AGENDA 
• Parliamentary Call to Order 
• Welcome 
• Roll Call 
• Items of Correspondence 
• City Council Action 
•     Approval and signing of minutes from the August 23, 2023 meeting. 
• Reading of State Ethics Rules. 

 
PRESENTATIONS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS   
   
1. Rezoning Petition 23-06. Rezoning of property owned by Boureanu and Creech Properties, 

LLC located at 3940 River Road from R-20 Residential to Planned Development. The subject 
property is shown in more detail Catawba County PIN 3710-09-17-5434. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
• None 
 
The Hickory Regional Planning Commission does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the 
provision of its service as charged by the City Council of the City of Hickory. All meetings are 
held in accessible facilities. Any person with a disability needing special accommodations should 
contact the Planning Department at telephone number (828) 323-7422 at least 48 hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Attendance Roster Key A Absent AX Excused No meeting No 
Quorum

FY 23-24 P Present Vacant/Not yet appointed

 

Hickory Regional 
Planning Commission

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Appoint Expire

Catawba County Steve Mull P P Jul-22 Jun-25
Catawba County William Pekman P P Jul-21 Jun-24

Burke County Vacant Dec-19 Jun-26
Ward 1 Bill McBrayer P P Jul-22 Jun-24
Ward 2 Philip Reed P P Jul-21 Jun-25
Ward 3 Junior Hedrick P P Jul-20 Jun-26
Ward 4 Sam Hunt P P Jul-21 Jun-24
Ward 5 Wallace Johnson P P Jul-20 Jun-26
Ward 6 Anne Williams P P Jul-22 Jun-25



 1 

Hickory Regional Planning Commission 
Wednesday, August 23, 2023, 6:00 pm 

 
A regular meeting of the Hickory Regional Planning Commission (HRPC) was held on Wednesday, August 23, 
2023, 6:00 pm, in the Map Conference Room of the Julian G. Whitener Municipal Bldg. 
 
 
Members Present:  Bill McBrayer, Bill Pekman, Junior Hedrick, Anne Williams, Steve Mull, Philip Reed, 
Wallace Johnson, and Sam Hunt 
 
Members Excused:  None 
 
Members Absent:  None 
 
Others Present:  Planning Director Brian Frazier, Senior Planner Mike Kirby, Deputy City Attorney Arnita Dula, 
and Minutes Clerk Anne Starnes 
 
Parliamentary Call to Order & Welcome:  Bill McBrayer, Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
Roll Call:  Planning Director Brian Frazier said a quorum was present, with all members attending.  
 
Items of Correspondence:  Mr. Frazier said there were no items of correspondence, but thanked Mr. McBrayer 
for participating with him in Hal Rowe’s WHKY radio program recently.  
 
City Council Action:  Mr. Frazier said City Council had recently approved Rezoning 23-04. 
 
Approval and Signing of Minutes from the July 26, 2023 Meeting:  Minutes from the previous meeting held in 
July were distributed to members in advance. No additions, deletions or corrections were stated. Bill Pekman 
moved, seconded by Wallace Johnson, to approve the July 26, 2023, minutes as presented. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Reading of State Ethics Rules:  Mr. McBrayer read the NC Ethics Rules aloud: 
 

In accordance with the State Government Ethics Act, it is the duty of every member of this board to 
avoid both conflicts of interest and appearances of conflict. Does any member of the board have any 
known conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with respect to any matters coming before us 
tonight? If so, please identify the conflict, or appearance of conflict, and refrain from any undue 
participation in the particular matter involved. 

 
None of the members stated a current conflict of interest or asked to be recused.  
 
PRESENTATIONS & PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Mr. McBrayer said there was one rezoning petition on the agenda. 
 
1.  Rezoning Petition 23-05. 
Request by the City of Hickory for the consideration of rezoning approximately 1.85 acres of property owned by 
Legacy Home Builders, LLC, located on 34th Street Place NE, between Springs Road and Section House Road, 
from Catawba County Zoning Residential (R-20) to City of Hickory Neighborhood Center Commercial (NC). The 
subject property is shown as PIN 3724-19-70-3169 on the Catawba County Tax Map.  
 
Mr. McBrayer opened the public hearing for Rezoning Petition 23-05. 
 



 2 

Senior Planner Mike Kirby presented the staff report and referred to PowerPoint slides. He reviewed slide #2 
(Rezoning Petition 23-05). 
 

• Property Owners:  Legacy Home Builders, LLC 
• Applicant:  City of Hickory 
• Location:  34th St Pl NE (PIN 372419703169) 
• Current Zoning:  Catawba County R-20 
• Property Size:  1.85 acres 
• Background:  The property is currently utilizing a split zoning designation with R-20 by Catawba 

County and Neighborhood Commercial (NC) by the City of Hickory. The property in its entirety is in the 
process of being annexed. 

• Request:  Rezone the property from Residential (R-20) to Neighborhood Commercial (NC) 
 
He said Legacy Home Builders LLC is the property owner, but the applicant is the City of Hickory, due to their 
application for annexation. 
 

Mr. Kirby reviewed slide #3 (Current Zoning), saying the property is currently split-zoned, with a small portion 
zoned as Catawba County Residential (R-20) and the remainder as City of Hickory Neighborhood Commercial 
(NC). The subject area, shown in hashed lines on the zoning map, is located in the City of Hickory’s ETJ. The 
white area shown on the map represents Catawba County, and the purple area represents Neighborhood 
Commercial. They are requesting to rezone the small portion to City of Hickory Neighborhood Commercial (NC).  
 
Slide #4 (Aerial Map). Mr. Kirby said the subject property on 34th Street Place NE was outlined in red on the 
map. It is located near the intersection of Section House Road and Springs Road. As can be seen here, the 
property is currently vacant and the owners intend to use it for residential development, which is an allowed use 
in Neighborhood Commercial. 
 
Mr. Kirby reviewed slide #5 (HBC 2030 Future Land Use), saying the map shows the subject property will be 
utilized for Neighborhood Mixed Use, and Neighborhood Commercial zoning is included in this use.   
 
Mr. Kirby reviewed slide #6 (Rezoning Petition 23-05). 
 

• The HBC 2030 Plan identifies the area as Neighborhood Mixed Use. 
– Consistent with Neighborhood Center designations 

 

• Neighborhood Mixed Use is characterized by: 
– A mix of residential, retail and office space 
– The current land use pattern of the larger area consists mainly of residential and commercial uses 

The rezoning of the property, as discussed, maintains this current pattern, sort of, but the 
prevailing NC district uses are non-residential 

 

• The Neighborhood Center (NC) district permits for a variety of commercial and residential uses: 
– Single Family, Two Family, and Multi Family Residential  
– Commercial uses such as Office Space, Retail Sales and Service, Medical Facilities, Schools, etc.  

 
Slide #7 (Rezoning Petition 23-05). 
 

Recommended Action 
• Staff recommends the following: 

– The adoption of a statement affirming the petition’s consistency with the Hickory by Choice 2030 
Comprehensive Plan.  

 

– The development of the property shall adhere to the regulations provided in the Land 
Development Code and any other applicable standards; and 

 

– Forward a recommendation of approval to the Hickory City Council. 
 



 3 

Mr. Kirby said staff recommends approval of this request and asked for questions from Commission members.  
 
Mr. McBrayer asked if staff had received any inquiries regarding the petition since August 16th. Mr. Kirby said 
they had received three (3) calls from people asking what was planned for the property.  
 
Ms. Williams said it seemed the staff recommendation to rezone the property from Residential (R-20) to 
Neighborhood Commercial (NC) was due to the Future Land Use Plan, and Mr. Kirby said yes. She noted having 
one reaction to the rezoning request as she read through the staff report materials, but her position had wavered 
after visiting the property. Mr. Kirby said Neighborhood Mixed Use is much like the other mixed uses, which mix 
commercial with a little bit of residential. He said the applicant was present and could discuss his proposed 
project for this area. 
 
Mr. Frazier said this was one of the many new cores that staff had recommended to the Planning Commission in 
2010, when they originally revised the Hickory by Choice, Future Land Use, and Transportation Plans to make it 
a truly comprehensive plan. This core has existed for the past 12 years, but it has not developed as they forecasted 
it would. 
 
Ms. Williams noted a large nearby area of property that is currently on the market for sale. Mr. Frazier said yes, it 
has been on the market, and twice they applied for subsidized senior multi-family use, but their plan did not make 
the cut through Raleigh. But yes, some other people have been interested in residential uses in that area. It is 
totally consistent with the plan and the use is allowed. 
 
There were no additional questions for Mr. Kirby, and Mr. McBrayer thanked him. 
 
The Staff Report was entered into the records as Exhibit A.  
 
Mr. McBrayer explained the procedure for a public hearing, saying testimony would be presented, both for and 
against the proposal. 
 
PROPONENTS 
∙  Vitaliy Gladysh, 2149 Country Club Road, Lincolnton NC, addressed Commission members, saying they 
purchased the land 2-weeks ago and, as members could see, all but a sliver of it is zoned Neighborhood 
Commercial. They are requesting the entire property be zoned NC and have no plans for any commercial uses on 
the property. Their plan is to build multi-family housing. It currently appears they will be able to build nine (9) 
duplexes, or 2-family homes, with 18 total dwellings. The size of each will be approximately 2,500 sqft. total, 
1,250 sqft on each side with 3 bedrooms and 2½ bathrooms.  
 
Mr. McBrayer asked their expected sale price for each duplex. Mr. Gladysh said they would not be selling them, 
that they plan to rent them. 
 
There were no other questions for Mr. Gladysh, and Mr. McBrayer thanked him. 
 
No additional proponents were present. 
 
OPPONENTS 
None 
 
Mr. McBrayer closed the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Bridges noted the Staff Report initially stated the property location as being in Ward 6, but staff has since 
determined it is in Ward 3, Councilman Danny Seaver’s ward. The property is split between Wards 3 and 6, but 
staff agrees it is closer to Ward 6. Also, he said the purpose for the annexation is to utilize City water and sewer.  
 



 4 

Mr. McBrayer asked for discussion or questions on Rezoning 23-05. Hearing none, he requested a motion to 
approve or deny the petition. 
 
Bill Pekman moved, seconded by Philip Reed, that the Planning Commission recommends approval of Rezoning 
23-05, which is consistent with the Hickory by Choice 2030 Comprehensive Plan, and requests a recommendation 
of approval be forwarded to Hickory City Council. By a show of hands, the motion was carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Bridges said both the annexation and rezoning requests would go to City Council on Tuesday, September 19. 
 
Other Business:  None 
 
Next Meeting:  The next regular meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 27, 2023, at 6:00 pm. 
 
Adjourn:  There being no further business, Mr. McBrayer declared the meeting adjourned at 6:20 pm. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Bill McBrayer, Chair 
Hickory Regional Planning Commission 

 
________________________________ 
Anne Starnes, Minutes Clerk 
City of Hickory 



Boureanu and Creech Properties, LLC

Boureaunu and Creech Properties, LLC

828.320.4255

costel@advelec.net

8/31/2023





Daniela Bourneanu
Member/Manager Boureanu and Creech Properties, LLC





WEB



WEB



WEB



WEB



(^
 N

3

0
 >

 0
~

o
 o

 m
m

 ?
o
 ^

~
z
. 
m

 c
/>

>
 ^

oo
S^

n
 m

> n m

u
M

^
 -

t^
 G

J

°^
 0

0
--

J
 c

o
0
0
 0

 C
:

3
^

^
^

.
m

 >

u.
N

3?
SS

^
3

^
0

0
s 0

>
. 

•
?

c 0 Is
.)

u
? M 0 M̂

^
-

SI
T

E
 P

L
A

N
S 

F
O

R
:

R
IV

E
R

 R
O

A
D

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

S
5

9
4

0
 R

IV
E

R
 R

D
, 
H

iC
K

O
R

Y
 N

C
 P

IN
:5

7
-t

0
0
9
1
7
5
4
5
4

( 
! 

^
L

/ 
im

, 
ta

u
 t

^
 i

h
u

 i
p

» 
;

im

Ci
vi

l
E

n
vi

ro
n

 m
en

ta
l

S
to

m
w

a
tc

r/
E

ro
st

o
n

 C
o
n

tr
o
l

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 M

a
n

a
a

om
en

t

H
1C

K
O

RY
, N

C
P

: 
(8

2
8
) 

N
0
-7

2
5
2

F
: 

(8
2

8
) 

3
9

4
-4

1
2

6
L

lc
a
n

se
 M

o
. 
C

-2
9
4
6

D
:\

_P
ro

je
ct

s\
R

iv
er

 R
d\

C
A

D
D

\
M

od
el

s\
R

iv
er

 R
d 

3.
dw

g,
 8

/2
9/

20
23

 1
0:

09
:1

0 
A

M
, D

W
G

 T
o 

P
D

F
.p

c3



Rezoning Petition 23-06 
Page 1 of 7 

REZONING ANALYSIS 
 
PETITION:  23-06 
 
APPLICANT: Boureanu and Creech Properties, LLC  
  
OWNERS:  Boureanu and Creech Properties, LLC 
 
PROPERTY LOCATION: 3940 River Road 
 
PIN:  3710-09-17-5434 
 
WARD:  Upon annexation, this property will be located in Ward 4 (Councilman Freeman). 
 
ACREAGE: 47.53, plus 0.62 acres in street right-of-way (River Road) and 1.06 acres in access 
easement area. 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: Rezone the property from Catawba County R-20 Residential to Planned 
Development (PD). 
 
BACKGROUND:  The property is vacant and zoned R-20 Residential by Catawba County. The 
property is in the process of being annexed, and the owners have requested the property be 
rezoned to Planned Development upon completion. 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL: The 47.53 acre property is zoned R-20 Residential by Catawba 
County. This district permits residential uses (single and two family) at maximum density of 2 
dwelling units per acre, which could potentially produce up to 95 new dwelling units. 
 
The requested Planned Development would consist of up to 178 single-family detached dwellings, 
which calculates to be 3.7 units per acre.  
 
 
REVIEW CRITERIA:  In reviewing and making recommendations on proposed zoning map 
amendments, review bodies shall consider the following factors: 
 

1. Consistency of the proposed zoning with the Hickory Comprehensive Land Use and 
Transportation Plan (Hickory by Choice 2030) and the stated Purpose and Intent of this 
Land Development Code;  

  
The general area is classified as Low Density Residential by the Hickory by Choice 2030 
Comprehensive Plan.   (Note:  The Hickory by Choice 2030 Comprehensive Plan’s Future 
Land Use map does not contain parcel line data, as the general boundaries of the land 
use categories are not concrete.) (Please refer to Map 1 for detail). 
 
The Hickory by Choice 2030 Comprehensive Plan states the following about Low Density 
Residential areas: “This land use category is intended to provide an area of transition 
between higher density housing in Hickory and the surrounding rural areas by offering 
development at two to four units per acre.” (HBC 2030, Pg. 25). The comprehensive plan 
also indicates a density of 2 to 4 dwelling units per acre is appropriate for the Low Density 
Residential classification.  
 



Rezoning Petition 23-06 
Page 2 of 7 

The master plan for the requested Planned Development (PD) district produces both use 
types and densities consistent with the language from the comprehensive plan. 
 
Given these factors, the rezoning of the property to Planned Development (PD) should be 
considered consistent with the findings and recommendations of the Hickory by Choice 
(2030) Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Section 1.7 of the Hickory Land Development Code contains its Stated Purpose and 
Intent.  This section contains five (5) specific items which the Land Development 
Code is intended to uphold.  These are as follows: 
 
• Implement the Hickory by Choice 2030 Comprehensive Plan. 

 
The area under consideration for rezoning is indicated by the Hickory by Choice 2030 
Comprehensive Plan as a residential area with development density from 2 to 4 
dwelling units per acre. The development as proposed meets both the use types and 
densities outlined within the comprehensive plan. 
    

• Preserve and protect land, air, water and environmental resources and property 
values. 
 
All improvements that are to take place on the property will be mandated to follow all 
applicable development regulations.   
 

• Promote land use patterns that ensure efficiency in service provision as well as wise 
use of fiscal resource and governmental expenditures. 

 
The subject property has access to a NCDOT maintained roadway (River Road / SR 
1144), as well as public utilities. The property owner / developer will be responsible for 
any necessary extensions needed for services.  The land-use pattern of the area, with 
the inclusion of the subject property, represents an efficient use of public services, and 
the wise use of public funding.  

 
• Regulate the type and intensity of development; and  

 
The current land use pattern of the larger area consists largely of residential uses, with 
the exception of the adjacent city-owned wastewater treatment plant (Henry Fork 
WWTP). Th predominant development pattern will continue under the proposed 
Planned Development (PD), as residences will be the sole land use within the 
development. The potential future use of the property is best suited to further the 
existing development pattern of the area. Public resources to provide critical public 
services are in place or will be provided by the property owner / developer to service 
the development.  These include public utilities and transportation infrastructure. 

 
• Ensure protection from fire, flood and other dangers. 

 
The subject property will be required to adhere to all state and local building, fire, and 
flood zone related development regulations.  Such regulations will ensure proper 
protections are provided to ensure surrounding residents, and property are properly 
protected as prescribed by law.   

 
 



Rezoning Petition 23-06 
Page 3 of 7 

 
 
2. Existing land uses within the general vicinity of the subject property (Please refer to Maps 

below for more detail):  
 
• North:  The property is zoned Low Density Residential (R-1) and occupied by a 

wastewater treatment plant. 
 
• South: The properties are zoned R-20 Residential and occupied by single-family 

residences or used as farmland.  
 

East: The properties are zoned R-20 Residential and are vacant. 
 

• West: The property is zoned R-20 Residential and occupied by single-family 
residences or vacant. 
 

3. The suitability of the subject properties for the uses permitted under the existing and 
proposed zoning classification:  

 
The current zoning and use of the larger area is predominately residential and agricultural. 
The current district permits residential as its primary use. The requested Planned 
Development is proposed to consist entirely of new residential dwellings. 
 

4. The extent to which zoning will detrimentally affect properties within the general vicinity of 
the subject property: 

 
Given the similarity of the current and requested districts, conflicts in use types would not 
be anticipated, nor expected to cause detrimental impacts on the surrounding area. 
 

5. The extent to which the proposed amendment (zoning map) will cause public services 
including roadways, storm water management, water and sewer, fire, and police protection 
to fall below acceptable levels.   

 
Public resources to provide critical public services are in place or will be put in place by 
the property owner / developer to serve the development.  These include public utilities 
transportation infrastructure, as well as police and fire protection. 
  

6. The proposed amendment (zoning map) will protect public health, safety, and general 
welfare. 
 
Any future development that occurs of the subject property as the result of the zoning map 
amendment, will be required to be adhere to regulations related to zoning, building and 
fire code, traffic, stormwater, etc.; which will work in conjunction with one another to ensure 
the health and safety of residents and visitors are properly protected. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Rezoning Petition 23-06 
Page 4 of 7 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
 Staff finds Rezoning Petition 23-06 to be consistent with the Hickory by Choice 2030 
Comprehensive Plan, and recommends the following: 
  

1. The Hickory Regional Planning Commission adopt a statement affirming the petition’s 
consistency with the Hickory by Choice 2030 Comprehensive Plan; and  

 
2. Forward a recommendation of approval to the Hickory City Council.  

 
CITIZEN INPUT:   
 
As of September 20, 2023, staff has received no inquiries regarding this petition. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



Rezoning Petition 23-06 
Page 5 of 7 

 



Rezoning Petition 23-06 
Page 6 of 7 

 



Rezoning Petition 23-06 
Page 7 of 7 

 


	Planning Commission Agenda 9.27.23
	AGENDA

	B&C ATTENDANCE FY 23-24
	Sheet1

	Minutes.8.23.23.HkyRegionalPlanning Commiss.CofHky
	Rezoning Application - River Road - Copy
	Rezoning Application - River Road
	Rezoning Application - River Road
	Boureanu LLC Filing
	Boureanu Deed

	River Road Master Plan

	RZ 23-06 Staff Report (HRPC)
	REZONING ANALYSIS




